
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

2450 E. Quincy Avenue                     Village Center 

Cherry Hills Village, CO  80113                     Telephone 303‐789‐2541 

www.cherryhillsvillage.com                                               FAX 303‐761‐9386 
 

Notice:  Agenda is subject to change. 

If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303‐789‐2541, 48 hours in 

advance. 

 

City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, January 3, 2017 

 

6:30 p.m. 

Final Meeting of the Outgoing City Council 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

2.  Roll Call of Members 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker) 

 

5.  Approval of Minutes – December 14, 2016  

 

6.  Reports of Outgoing Members 

 

7.  Presentation by City Manager 

 

8.  Adjournment 

 

Organizational Meeting of the New City Council 

 

9.  Oaths of Office – Administered by City Clerk Laura Smith 

  a.  Mayor 

  b.  Councilors Districts 1, 3 and 5 

 

10.  Call to Order 

 

11.  Roll Call of Members 

 

12.  Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 

 

13.  Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker) 

 

14.  Consent Agenda 

  a.  Appointment of City Clerk, City Treasurer and City Attorney 

b.  Resolution 1, Series 2017; Designating the Public Place for Posting Notices of Regular and Special 

Meetings 

c.  Resolution 2, Series 2017; Reappointment of the Municipal Judge and the Alternate Municipal 

Judges 

 

15.  Items Removed From Consent Agenda 

 

****Agenda continues on second page**** 



CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

 

Notice:  Agenda is subject to change. 

If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303‐789‐2541, 48 hours in 

advance. 

16.  Unfinished Business 

a.  Council Bill 11, Series 2016; Authorizing a Site Lease and Lease Purchase Agreement Between the 

City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado, and UMB Bank for the Purpose of Financing Public 

Buildings and Certain Park Improvements; Approving Not to Exceed $12,900,000 Principal 

Amount of Certificates of Participation (COP’s), Series 2017 in Connection Therewith; Authorizing 

Officials of the City to Take All Action Necessary to Carry Out the Transactions Contemplated 

Hereby; and Related Matters (second and final reading) 

 

17.  New Business 

  a.  City Council Liaison Assignments 

b.  Resolution 3, Series 2017; Approving the First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement 

with Arapahoe County for Contribution to the High Line Canal Visioning Project 

 

18.  Reports 

a.  Mayor 

b.  Members of City Council 

c.  Reports from Members of City Boards and Commissions 

d.  City Manager and Staff 

  (i)  Planning and Zoning Commission Vacancy 

e.  City Attorney 

 

19.  Adjournment 

 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

1 

Minutes of the 
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 
Held on Wednesday, December 14, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

At the Village Center 
 
Mayor Laura Christman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Laura Christman, Councilors Mark Griffin, Earl Hoellen, Alex Brown, Mike 
Gallagher, and Klasina VanderWerf were present on roll call.  Also present were City 
Manager Jim Thorsen, Deputy City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie, 
Assistant City Attorney Marcus McAskin, Finance Director Karen Proctor, Police Chief 
Michelle Tovrea, Community Development Director Rachel Hodgson, Human Resource 
Analyst Kathryn Ducharme, Parks, Trails & Recreation Administrator Ryan Berninzoni, 
Public Works Project and Right-of-Way Manager Ralph Mason, Accounting Clerk 
Jessica Sager and City Clerk Laura Smith. 
 
Absent:  Councilor Katy Brown 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Council conducted the pledge of allegiance. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD 
 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Councilor VanderWerf removed Item 6a from the Consent Agenda. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Item 6a. Approval of Minutes – November 15, 2016 
 
Councilor VanderWerf explained that her comments on page 9 should be amended to 
clarify that the High Line Conservancy Master Plan could include using artwork made of 
natural materials, but that no decisions had been made. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve Item 6a as 
amended. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

2 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Proposed 2017 Budget  
 
Director Proctor presented the 2017 Budget on second and final reading. She indicated 
that a study session was held to discuss the 2017 proposed budget on October 4, 2016 
and a public hearing was held during first reading on November 15, 2016. Overall, the 
General Fund was balanced with revenues equal to expenditures in the amount of $6.9 
million and an ending fund balance in 2017 of $4.5 million. In the Capital Fund, 
operating expenditures would exceed revenues by $1 million, excluding bond proceeds 
and building projects. The Capital Fund was expected to have an ending balance in 
2017 of $6.2 million. Bond proceeds in the amount of $5.35 million were added for the 
financing of the new Public Works Facility and City Hall. The 2017 budget included 
three major construction projects, consisting of the John Meade Park and Alan Hutto 
Memorial Commons redevelopment ($3.7 million), construction of a new City Hall ($4.5 
million), and construction of a new Public Works Facility ($4.7 million). The 2017 
proposed budget included issuance of $12.9 million in Certificates of Participation 
(COPs) over 25 years to fund all three projects. Based on this issuance the Capital 
Fund would receive 42% ($5.35 million) while the Parks and Recreation Fund would 
receive the remaining 58% ($7.55 million) of the bond proceeds. The COP payment for 
each of the respective allocations in 2017 would be split with $266,651 paid from the 
General Fund operating budget and $368,233 paid from the Park and Recreation Fund. 
2017 payments would begin in February, and therefore payments in subsequent years 
would be slightly higher. There had been a few minor changes to the budget since first 
reading, including an increase in COP payments due to an increase in interest rates; a 
decrease in health insurance costs due to a change in plans and dental carrier; an 
increase in expenses in the Parks and Recreation Fund for the High Line Canal Master 
Plan with Urban Drainage; and an increase in expenditures to the Data Processing 
budget for a new large format printer. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that Arapahoe County was distributing fewer tax funds for 
bridge maintenance and asked if staff knew why that was happening.  
 
Director Proctor replied that she would look into that question. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf noted that it appeared that expenditures for Quincy Farm were 
limited to maintenance and repairs in 2017. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie replied that the City would apply for grants from 
Arapahoe County Open Space for improvements to the property, including tree 
maintenance, irrigation upgrades, and possible addition of a trail. He added that staff 
was working with the Quincy Farm Committee on these projects. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that staff had started the process of rezoning of Quincy Farm to 
the O-2 Zone District. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

3 

Council Bill 8, Series 2016; A Bill for an Ordinance Adopting a Budget and Levying 
Property Taxes for the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado for the Fiscal Year 2017 
(second and final reading)  
 
Councilor Gallagher moved, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown to approve Council Bill 8, 
Series 2016; A Bill for an Ordinance Adopting a Budget and Levying Property Taxes for the 
City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado for Fiscal Year 2017 on final reading. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

Gallagher   yes 
Griffin    yes 
A. Brown   yes 
VanderWerf   yes 
Hoellen   yes 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 8-2016:  5 ayes.  0 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
Council Bill 9, Series 2016; A Bill for an Ordinance of the City of Cherry Hills Village, 
Colorado Authorizing Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2017 (second and final reading) 
 
Councilor Gallagher moved, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown to approve Council Bill 9, 
Series 2016; A Bill for an Ordinance of The City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado Authorizing 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2017 on final reading. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

Griffin    yes 
A. Brown   yes 
VanderWerf   yes 
Hoellen   yes 
Gallagher   yes 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 9-2016:  5 ayes.  0 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
Council Bill 10, Series 2016; Authorizing a Supplemental Appropriation for Utility 
Expenses for Quincy Farm for Fiscal Year 2016 (second and final reading) 
 
Director Proctor presented Council Bill 10, Series 2016 on second and final reading. 
She explained that in 2007, Catherine H. Anderson placed a conservation easement on 
her property, Quincy Farm, to preserve its scenic, historic and natural value in 
perpetuity. Cat donated her entire property, subject to the conservation easement, to 
the City of Cherry Hills Village upon her passing. Cat passed away in June of 2016. The 
City was unable to anticipate when they would take ownership of Quincy Farm and 
therefore did not include utility expenses in the 2016 budget. The utility expenses were 
approximately $900/month. Therefore, Council Bill 10, Series 2016 would approve a 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

4 

supplemental appropriation in the amount of $5,400 ($900 x 6 months) for the utilities 
account in the Catherine H. Anderson Land Donation Fund. If approved, the utilities 
account in the Catherine H. Anderson Land Donation Fund would be increased from $0 
to $5,400. However, this should not cause a decrease to fund balance because staff 
forecasted that revenues would exceed budgeted revenues in this fund and would cover 
the increase in expenditures. Utility expenses for Quincy Farm were included in the 
2017 budget. There were no changes to the council bill since first reading. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf moved, seconded by Councilor Hoellen to approve Council Bill 
10, series 2016 on second reading; a bill for an ordinance of the City of Cherry Hills 
Village, authorizing a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $5,400 for utility 
expenses for Quincy Farm for fiscal year 2016. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

A. Brown   yes 
VanderWerf   yes 
Hoellen   yes 
Gallagher   yes 
Griffin    yes 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 10-2016:  5 ayes.  0 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
Continued from November 15, 2016 – Public Hearing to Consider a Request by David 
Mosteller of 1550 East Oxford Lane and 4180 South Humboldt Street for a Variance 
from Municipal Code Section 16-5-30(b) Concerning Minimum Lot Area for Approval of 
a Minor Lot Adjustment 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie explained that the application was for approval 
from City Council of a minimum lot area variance from Municipal Code Section 16-5-
30(b) in order to seek administrative approval of a minor lot adjustment plat. The 
applicant owned or controlled both 1550 E. Oxford Lane and 4180 S. Humboldt Street. 
The minimum lot area variance was necessary because the Humboldt Street lot was 
already non-conforming in lot area and the proposed, reconfigured Humboldt lot would 
also fail to meet the minimum lot area for the R-1 zone district, which was a criterion of 
approval for a minor lot adjustment plat. The minor lot adjustment plat was separate 
from the variance request, and would be approved administratively by staff if Council 
approved the minimum lot area variance. The subject properties were zoned R-1, 2 ½-
acre residential district. According to Arapahoe County Assessor records, the Oxford lot 
was 2.71 net acres and the Humboldt lot was 1.22 net acres. The north and south sides 
of the properties were surrounded by lots that were zoned R-1 and developed with 
single family residences. Municipal Code Section 17-3-420 outlined the approval criteria 
that City Council must use to determine approval of a variance request. Before 
approval, City Council would have to find that the request met all the criteria as outlined 
in the staff memorandum. City Council held a public hearing to consider the application 
on October 18, 2016 at which time the applicant’s representative presented the 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

5 

application to City Council.  Council continued the public hearing to November 15, 2016 
and then to December 14, 2016 to allow the applicant to be present and address 
Council directly and to allow staff additional time to research the issues.  Since the 
October 18, 2016 meeting, City staff had been in communication with the applicant, 
applicant’s attorney and representative.  From these discussions, the applicant was 
willing to agree to a restrictive covenant recorded against both the Humboldt and Oxford 
parcels to ensure the parcels will be conveyed together to the same entity or person.  
The justification for the restrictive covenant arose from the lot merger provision set forth 
in Section 16-2-70 of the Municipal Code. Staff has found that the applicant has met all 
required criteria and recommended approval of the minimum lot area variance with 
conditions. It appeared that neither Mr. Mosteller or a representative were present at the 
meeting. 
 
Councilor Hoellen questioned how the timing of the variance would interact with the 
filing of the restrictive covenance. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin replied that approval of the variance would be 
conditionally approved by Council and subject to the restrictive covenance being 
executed and recorded. 
 
Mayor Christman asked who would record the covenant with the County. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin replied that the City Attorney’s office or City staff would 
record the covenant with the County. 
 
Councilor Hoellen questioned the effectiveness of the covenant if there were a violation 
of the terms, as opposed to a breach of contract. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin replied that the consequences to a violation of the 
covenant were sufficiently outlined in the document and noted that the covenant also 
included a provision for the recovery of attorney fees by the prevailing party in the case 
of litigation. He noted that the variance would not be granted until the covenant was fully 
executed and recorded. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that an example of a violation to the covenant would be the 
transfer of one of the properties to a third party without concurrent transfer of the other 
property to the same third party. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin replied that there was no clear process to address that 
issue in the City Code but that the City could file a certificate of lot merger based on the 
lot merger provision set forth in Section 16-2-70 of the Municipal Code and the brief 
period of time when Mr. Mosteller had owned both lots. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked if there was a statute of limitations to enforcing that action. He 
added that he would prefer the City’s cause of action be related to the restrictive 
covenant rather than Section 16-2-70 of the Code. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

6 

 
Mayor Christman replied that it was not clear under the City Code but that State laws 
addressed unlawful division of property. She asked staff to create a master file of all the 
existing agreements and covenants impacting City properties to help ensure that 
nothing was overlooked in the future. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked if there were any rules against perpetuity regarding land 
transfers. 
 
Mayor Christman replied that a restrictive covenant would not violate the rule against 
perpetuity. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin noted that the rule against perpetuity usually came into 
effect when dealing with an issue of vesting, which was not applicable in this case. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that after the covenant was fully executed and recorded, 
then the variance would be approved and a building permit could be applied for. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin confirmed that was correct. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie added that the lot line adjustment would be 
approved administratively after the variance was approved and before a building permit 
could be applied for. 
 
Mayor Christman re-opened the Public Hearing at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Hearing no comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Councilor Hoellen moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve the request 
by David S. Mosteller for a minimum lot area variance from Municipal Code Section 16-
5-30(b) based on the findings of fact set forth in the staff report dated December 14, 
2016, and subject to the following condition of approval: That the City, David S. 
Mosteller and 80 South Santa Fe Development Company, LLC execute a restrictive 
covenant, in substantially the same form as attached to the December 14, 2016 staff 
report as Exhibit J subject to modifications approved by the Mayor and City Attorney 
that do not substantially change the intent of the restrictive covenant. In support of this 
motion, the City Council finds that the proposed variance meets all of the approval 
criteria set forth in Municipal Code Section 17-3-420 as outlined in Table 1 of the 
December 14, 2016 staff memorandum. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

7 

Civic Center Project Options and Future Disposition of the Public Works Maintenance 
Facility 
 
City Manager Thorsen indicated that staff was asking for Council direction on which 
option the City should pursue for the final disposition of the Public Works maintenance 
facility. Determining the preferred option would then allow for the completion of the 
proposed three major City projects, including the buildout of John Meade Park and Alan 
Hutto Memorial Commons, the construction of a new City Hall building, and the 
construction of a new Public Works facility. Multiple reports and studies had been 
prepared over the years, several of which recommended relocating Public Works 
outside the City but in close proximity to the City. Over the last six months the City had 
found two new sites and acquired the rights to purchase both properties. These sites 
were a two acre parcel on the SW corner of Jefferson Street and Colorado Boulevard in 
Cherry Hills Village (“Parcel 1”), and a three acre parcel located at 2101 W. Quincy 
Avenue in the City of Sheridan (“Parcel 2”). The potential purchase of either of these 
parcels would allow the Council flexibility in choosing which option may be best for City 
operations in order to meet the expectations of City residents and would allow for the 
completion of all three projects. On July 13, 2016, City staff hosted a community 
meeting to discuss the possibility of moving the Public Works facility to Parcel 1.  
Several of the surrounding residents expressed strong opposition to the relocation.  A 
follow up City Council meeting was held on August 16, 2016, wherein several options 
utilizing Parcel 1 were explored.  Again, the residents expressed opposition to relocating 
Public Works to the site. In September, the City entered into an agreement on Parcel 2, 
which is located approximately 3.5 miles from City Hall.  Staff has been able to 
negotiate a final purchase price of $2,425,000 which could be discussed in further detail 
with the next agenda item tonight, pending which option City Council chose. On 
November 1, 2016, the City conducted a public input meeting at St. Mary’s Academy to 
obtain input from residents on five options that included using either Parcel 1 or 2.   
 
City Manager Thorsen explained that Option 1 was to construct a Public Works facility 
at 2101 W. Quincy Avenue, and City Hall construction and full build out of John Meade 
Park would be accomplished within the Civic Center; Option 2 was to construct a new 
Public Works facility within the Civic Center, relocate City Hall to Jefferson St./Colorado 
Blvd., and build out John Meade Park in the Civic Center; Option 3 was to construct a 
new Public Works facility at Jefferson St./Colorado Blvd. and construct City Hall in the 
Civic Center near its current location, allowing for the build out of John Meade Park in 
the Civic Center; Option 4 was to construct both City Hall and the Public Works facility 
in the Civic Center, which would necessitate a reduction in the size and the loss of 
amenities at John Meade Park; Option 5 was only a partial solution and would need to 
be used in conjunction with the above options, and included using the “Hampden 
Triangle” parcel or building an additional garage in combination with one of the other 
options. At the November 1st meeting several residents and City Councilmembers 
expressed interest in pursuing Option 1. A few residents expressed support for some of 
the other options as well. City staff was now requesting that Council further discuss all 
options and provide direction to staff on which option was preferable. Staff would focus 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

8 

on strengths and weaknesses of Option 1; however staff was prepared to discuss all of 
the other options.  
 
City Manager Thorsen explained that the strengths of Option 1 included the size of the 
property (3 acres), which would accommodate all existing and future City Public Works 
and Park functions, and that the property was relatively flat, which would limit the 
amount of any future grading or the need for retaining walls; the site was located in an 
industrial zone and therefore noise, traffic, and aesthetics would not impact surrounding 
lots and rezoning of the property was not required as it would be for Options 2 and 3; 
there were two existing large primary garage buildings totaling 7,200 square feet that 
were in good shape and could immediately function for storage of equipment and 
material, after some remodeling and repair, and would save significant funds on 
construction; although the site would no longer be within the City boundaries, it was only 
2.2 miles to the City’s western boundary and 3.5 miles to City Hall; the site was the least 
disruptive to residential neighborhood concerns regarding noise, traffic, and aesthetics; 
although it was not anticipated that the City would sell the land, it was believed that 
based upon location and limited availability of industrial property in this region, this site 
would increase in value over time.  Also, Option 1 was similar in costs to develop for 
City use when compared to the other options, but with Option 1 the City would have 
also acquired a 3-acre site.  

 
City Manager Thorsen indicated that the weaknesses of Option 1 included an 
anticipated increase of approximately $18,000/year in fuel and maintenance costs 
based upon five vehicles each traveling an additional 14 miles/day at a cost of 
$1.00/mile; the lost personnel time was estimated to be $50,000/year based on ten staff 
members each losing approximately 30-40 minutes a day (two roundtrips) at ten 
minutes each way. Should efficiencies improve and fewer trips need to be taken, costs 
could be significantly reduced.  
 
City Manager Thorsen explained that Phase I and II environmental studies had been 
performed for the City on the site and that he would go into more detail during the next 
agenda item if appropriate. In order to construct new buildings on the site, the City 
would need to install a private sewer line and remove the septic system. There were two 
options available. The first and most desirable option would be to construct a gravity 
flow sewer line to the west. An easement would be required from the adjacent property 
owner, but this option was the most economical to construct and maintain. If the 
easement could not be acquired, a sewer line could be constructed to the east within 
Quincy Avenue up to Natches Court. This sewer line would require an onsite holding 
tank and a pumping system with backup generator power. The option to Natches Court 
was less desirable and more costly to construct and maintain but would not require an 
easement. The cost estimate included as Exhibit F to the staff memorandum included 
the Natches Court option. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf noted that another strength of Option1 was that it would allow 
flexibility in staging during the construction of new City facilities. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

9 

City Manager Thorsen replied that it would depend on timing but that was true. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked if vehicles and equipment used for weather events could be 
kept at the Civic Center to reduce response time during those events. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that there was no garage planned to keep equipment at 
the Civic Center but the Hampden triangle could be used for staging. He added that 
Public Works equipment and vehicles could be placed in the proposed Civic Center 
parking lot which should have ample room, but no covered storage was planned for the 
Civic Center. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about the easement that would be necessary at the 2101 W. 
Quincy Avenue site for sewer. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff had not approached that property owner about 
the easement yet. He noted that the City would likely compensate the property owner 
for the easement, but that if the easement was secured it would save costs compared 
with the Natches Court option. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated he was in favor of Option 1 and that it fit the needs of the 
City. He expressed concern over possible exposure of the City to liability associated 
with environmental issues on a long term basis. He asked if staff had looked into 
environmental insurance. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff was confident that any significant environmental 
issues would have been shown by the Phase I and Phase II environmental studies. He 
indicated that staff had received quotes for one and three year packages of $1 million of 
environmental insurance, which would cost around $12,500 with some exclusions. He 
noted that the time of highest susceptibility to environmental exposure was during 
construction. Staff had also discussed the issue with the City’s broker who 
communicated that a recently sold property had required environmental remediation 
based on its Phase II report that had cost between $8,000 and $12,000, with an 
additional $5,000 for additional work. He indicated staff’s belief that $1 million in 
environmental insurance would be sufficient. He noted that the coverage could be 
extended on a yearly basis beyond the initial term, but that it was expensive insurance. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that the Phase I and II environmental reports for the 2101 
W. Quincy Avenue property were good reports, and nothing had been identified that 
would suggest contamination that would expose the City to liability in the future. 
 
Mayor Christman added that for an industrial property it was very clean, and in fact was 
cleaner than the City’s current Public Works site. She noted that the insurance would 
not cover anything that the City did to the site and three years was usually the longest 
period of time for environmental insurance because it would be increasingly difficult to 
distinguish what had been there previously versus what was caused by the City. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

10

Councilor Griffin suggested an abundance of caution. 
 
Councilor Gallagher indicated that the insurance would likely only cover substances that 
had been tested for and that the City might consider doing more testing to eliminate 
some of the exclusions to the policy. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff planned to conduct further tests of the well 
water and if the tests revealed compounds above EPA allowed levels then the well 
water would be used only for dust control and vehicle washing rather than human 
consumption. He stated that the City would not be using the well water for drinking 
purposes, but instead would hook up to a nearby potable water line. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked if staff was still considering generating revenue from 
leasing part of the property since the City did not need all three acres at this time. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff had not ruled out the possibility but that the 
issuance of the COPs might restrict the City’s ability to lease any portion of the property. 
 
Councilor Hoellen moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve Option 1 as 
the preferred site location for the Public Works maintenance facility and direct staff to 
pursue the relocation of said facility to 2101 W. Quincy Avenue, in the City of Sheridan, 
Colorado. 
 
City Manager Thorsen asked if Council wished to allow public comment. 
 
City Clerk Smith noted that it was at the Mayor’s discretion. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Dan Sheldon, 6375 E. Tufts Avenue, stated that the Council had done a good job 
coming to and vetting the current options. He asked why the City would proceed with 
the acquisition of 2101 E. Quincy Avenue instead of getting an extension in order to find 
answers to their questions and doing further testing as necessary.  
 
Mayor Christman replied that the seller was not willing to grant an extension. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that for him there were no unanswered questions that would 
influence his ability to make a decision and move forward. He stated that given the 
information available on a property such as this he considered it a good property. He 
noted that Council would render judgements as additional information might become 
available. 
 
Mayor Christman added that staff and Council had examined the Phase I and Phase II 
environmental reports very carefully. She noted that the well water under question was 
not needed for human consumption and therefore was not a great concern. She noted 
that the property at Jefferson and Colorado had no environmental issues because it was 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

11

vacant, but considering that the 2101 W. Quincy Avenue property had been used for 
industrial use it was a very clean property. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about the water rights on 2101 W. Quincy Avenue. 
 
Mayor Christman replied that the seller was conveying the water rights to the City. 
 
Councilor Griffin noted that water rights were a valuable asset. He asked about the 
wells on the property. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie noted that the wells were not very deep. 
 
City Manager Thorsen added that they were 10-20 feet deep. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked if the wells were permitted by the State Engineer. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that they were and that the permits would be transferred 
to the City. 
 
Councilor Hoellen and Councilor VanderWerf renewed the motion. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 18, Series 2016; Approving the Acquisition of 2101 W. Quincy Avenue 
Located in the City of Sheridan Consisting of Approximately 3.0 Acres More or Less 
 
City Manager Thorsen presented Council with Resolution 18, Series 2016 which would 
authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract to purchase 2101 W. Quincy Avenue for the 
purpose of relocating the Public Works Department maintenance facility. He noted that 
the property consisted of three acres in the City of Sheridan. He indicated that Phase I 
and Phase II environmental assessments had been completed on the site. Eight soil 
drillings were made and seven samples were tested. Volatile Organic Compounds 
(VOCs) and Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds (SVOCs) were non-detectable in all 
samples. Barium, chromium, lead, and mercury were detected in all samples and 
arsenic was detected in two samples.  The concentrations were below State and EPA 
limits. Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) were detected in one sample, but were below 
EPA limits. The site contained five wells, one of which was dry. The four active wells 
were tested. VOCs, SVOCs, and PCBs were non-detectable in samples. Barium and 
chromium were detected in some or all samples, but were below State regulations for 
drinking water. The concentration of lead and arsenic in one of the samples were above 
State drinking water standards.  The City would connect to a potable water supply for 
drinking water. The use of the well was likely to be maintained for vehicle wash system 
and dust control. It was recommended the water well be sampled prior to use to 
determine uses for water. Nine soil gas vapor points were analyzed by penetrating 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

12

concrete slabs of buildings and through the asphalt parking lot. Methane was not 
detected in any sample. A photoionization detector (PID) was used to sample for VOCs. 
From the highest PID reading, an air sample was collected which indicated VOCs in the 
sub-slab. It was recommended that a 24-hour test be conducted if that building was to 
be occupied. EPA and Colorado Regulations identify material to be asbestos containing 
if it contained greater than 1% asbestos. The floor tile and associated Mastic located in 
the main shop and the back shop contain asbestos greater than 1%. If the buildings or 
tile were removed, appropriate handling of the material would have to be conducted by 
a certified asbestos contractor. There were a few other samples of drywall and joint 
compound that showed trace amounts of asbestos (less than 1%). If this material was 
disturbed during construction proper OSHA protective equipment and controls would 
have to be followed. Staff was confident that the environmental assessments had been 
thorough and that risk of environmental issues was relatively low. The original contract 
to buy the property was set at $2.45 million.  The City had an appraisal conducted on 
the property and the final appraisal amount was $2.40 million.  The City and seller 
agreed on a final price of $2.425 million. The anticipated construction on the site 
included a new 7,000 square foot office and garage building, a salt and sand storage 
building, utility connections, vehicle wash bay, fuel tanks, security, fencing, mag tank, 
and other improvements. The total estimate of construction was $2.14 million and 
included the more costly sewer connection and a 30% contingency. This would mean 
the total cost to purchase the property and rehabilitate existing buildings as well as 
construct new facilities would be approximately $4.57 million. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked if the City had preliminary plans for the new buildings. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff had identified rough locations and sizes for the 
new buildings. He added that staff had begun the architectural review process and 
would bring a contract for Council’s consideration if Council approved the acquisition. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked about clearing the property. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that 90% of the vehicles had already been removed from 
the site. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked if the acquisition was contingent on the property being cleared. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that the contract included fines if the property was not 
cleared. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked about the City leasing back a portion of the property to 
the seller. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that the contract included a 90 day lease back of the 
modular home on the property to the seller. He explained that the seller lived in the 
modular home and had requested the 90 day lease back to allow him time to relocate. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

13

Councilor Hoellen asked if the seller had waived liability for the lease back. 
 
City Manager Thorsen confirmed that was correct and added that it would be covered 
by the City’s insurance. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin indicated that line four of Section 1 of the resolution 
should be amended from “General Warranty Deed” to “Special Warranty Deed”, as it 
had been changed during the negotiations. 
 
Councilor Hoellen moved, seconded by Councilor VanderWerf to approve Resolution 
18, Series 2016, as amended by Council; a resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Cherry Hills Village approving the acquisition of 2101 W. Quincy Avenue located in the 
City of Sheridan consisting of approximately 3.0 acres more or less. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Council Bill 11, Series 2016; Authorizing a Site Lease and Lease Purchase Agreement 
Between the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado, and UMB Bank for the Purpose of 
Financing Public Buildings and Certain Park Improvements; Approving Not to Exceed 
$12,900,000 Principal Amount of Certificates of Participation (COP’s), Series 2017 in 
Connection Therewith; Authorizing Officials of the City to Take All Action Necessary to 
Carry Out the Transactions Contemplated Hereby; and Related Matters (first reading) 
 
Director Proctor presented Council Bill 11, Series 2016 on first reading. She explained 
that the City had three major projects proposed in the 2017 budget, consisting of the 
construction of John Meade Park and Alan Hutto Memorial Commons ($3.7M), the 
construction of a new City Hall ($4.5M), and the construction of a new Public Works 
Facility ($4.7M). The City intended to issue up to and not to exceed $12.9 million in 
COPs (Certificates of Participation) to fund the projects. City-owned property and 
buildings totaling approximately $12.9 million would be used as collateral for the 
financing. The COP proceeds would be divided between the Capital Fund and Parks 
Fund, with the Public Works facility split 50% Capital Fund and 50% Parks Fund; City 
Hall split 67% Capital Fund and 33% Parks Fund; and John Meade Park 100% Parks 
Fund. Overall 58% of the proceeds would go to the Parks Fund and 42% to the Capital 
Fund. In addition to the $12.9 million issuance, Director Proctor presented another 
option to Council for issuance of $9.2 million for the Public Works and City Hall projects, 
requiring that the John Meade Park project be paid with cash. In both options the annual 
COP payment from the General Fund would be the same at $354,000, but the COP 
payment from the Parks Fund would be $246,000 with the $9.2 million issuance versus 
$487,000 for the $12.9 million issuance, a difference of $240,000 for the additional $3.7 
million in COPs. Director Proctor presented a graph showing forecasts out to 2030 of 
the General Fund, Capital Fund, and three Parks funds (Parks and Recreation Fund, 
Arapahoe County Open Space Fund, and Cat Anderson Fund) using the two issuance 
amounts. All fund balances remained positive except for the Capital Fund, and a 
combined positive fund balance in 2030 of approximately $12 to $15 million. Staff 
continued to look at ways to fund the Capital Fund such as properly allocating Parks 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

14

expenses to the Parks Fund and transferring excess fund balances from the General 
Fund to the Capital Fund. Dan Lynch, bond counsel for the City, and David Bell, 
underwriter for the City, were present to answer any Council questions. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that the Capital Fund would go negative in the future with or 
without issuance of COPs and the future negative fund balance was not caused by the 
COPs. 
 
Director Proctor confirmed that was correct. She added that without issuance of COPs 
more funds from the General Fund could potentially be transferred to the Capital Fund 
and the Capital Fund balance would decrease more slowly. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf noted that Council had created the Capital Fund because of 
excessive fund balance in the General Fund. She asked if the forecast considered 
excessive fund balances in future years. 
 
Director Proctor replied that the forecast followed the current fund balance policy but 
assumed revenues equal to expenditures each year so any revenues in excess of 
expenditures would cause the Capital Fund to decrease more slowly. 
 
Councilor Hoellen questioned if the 2% annual increase in revenue used for the forecast 
was reasonable. 
 
Director Proctor replied that it was safe and accurate for purposes of forecasting. 
 
City Manager Thorsen added that excess revenue was transferred from the General 
Fund to the Capital Fund at the end of each year and it was likely this trend would 
continue, causing the Capital Fund balance to decrease more slowly than shown in the 
forecast. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that sales tax revenue may continue to decrease as 
more venders became aware that the City did not charge sales tax on deliveries into the 
City. He estimated that 80% of current sales tax revenue was secure. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked if the three projects could be split up and COPs issued 
separately for each one.  
 
David Bell, underwriter for the City, replied that issuing individual COPs for the Public 
Works facility and City Hall would be straightforward, but it would be difficult to issue an 
individual COP for John Meade Park because taking a lease hold interest in a park 
might not be possible. 
 
City Manager Thorsen noted that there was a cost each time a set of COPs was issued 
and so separating the issuances would result in additional costs for the City. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf added that delays could mean higher interest rates. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

15

 
Councilor Gallagher noted that the council bill would approve up to $12.9 million in 
COPs and asked when Council would have to decide exactly what amount to issue. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff needed direction from Council on the amount 
they wished to approve at tonight’s meeting. He noted there would be a second reading 
of the council bill during which discussion could continue. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown suggested paying for the John Meade Park improvements 
with cash and eliminating that project from the COPs, reducing the issuance amount to 
$9.4 million. He indicated his support of spending cash before borrowing money. He 
noted that John Meade Park was a more fluid project than the other two, and that 
paying with cash might motivate the City to seek grants for John Meade Park more 
aggressively. He also suggested adding a condition to the council bill that the COPs 
would not be issued before the Council had approved plans for Public Works and had 
negotiated a fixed price contract for construction of City Hall. He supported starting the 
process now and delegating the City Manager and Finance Director to move forward, 
but indicated that more work needed to be done before the COPs were issued. He 
added that the additional cost to splitting the COP issuance into two was likely minimal 
compared to the overall cost of the COPs to the City. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that floodplain remediation at the Civic Center was current 
budgeted as part of the John Meade Park project, and asked Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown 
if he envisioned that portion of the project being paid for by COPs or with cash. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated it would be paid for with cash along with the John 
Meade Park budget. 
 
Councilor Gallagher noted that Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown was not against 
redevelopment of John Meade Park but was concerned about the method of funding. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf noted that some of the City Hall work was contingent on the 
floodplain remediation. 
 
Mayor Christman asked where the $3.7 in cash for the John Meade Park project would 
come from. 
 
Director Proctor replied that $1 million would come from the Parks and Recreation 
Fund, $700,000 from the Conservation Trust Fund and $2 million from the General 
Fund, to be paid back from the Parks Fund at a later date. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked about funds for open space if the John Meade Park 
redevelopment was paid for with cash. 
 
Director Proctor replied that fewer funds would be available for open space acquisition. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

16

Councilor Hoellen noted that acquiring open space was an overriding priority of the City 
that the Council was dedicated to trying to accomplish. He indicated that if the John 
Meade Park project was paid for in cash it would move open space acquisition to a 
lower priority. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown stated that he considered 90 Meade Lane to be a land bank 
for open space. 
 
Councilor Griffin suggested that the redevelopment of John Meade Park could be 
considered investment in open space. 
 
Councilor Hoellen agreed that 90 Meade Lane to be a land bank for open space and 
that the redevelopment of John Meade Park could be considered a contribution to open 
space. He stated that the question was how much cash Council wanted to have 
available for a potential future open space opportunity, and Council had often used the 
amount of $5 million. He noted that the City never knew when a property or easement 
might become available, and alternate sources of funding were difficult to find. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown suggested that the voters would be most likely to support 
open space rather than any other project if the City had to go to the voters for additional 
revenue. He indicated that he had never seen anyone work as hard as the Mayor had 
on potential open space acquisition and that it was difficult to find opportunities. 
 
Councilor Hoellen agreed and stated that he did not want an opportunity to come up 
and the City to not have funds available. He noted that going to the voters was not a 
fast process. He stated that he agreed that the City should be confident in the costs of 
construction before the COPs were issued. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown suggested that the City be at or above 90% certainty of the 
costs of construction before the COPs were issued. 
 
City Manager Thorsen indicated that staff was very confident in the current cost 
estimates. He explained that a 30% contingency had been added to each phase of the 
John Meade Park redevelopment cost estimates for a total of $1 million in 
contingencies. He stated that absolute costs for construction of Public Works and City 
Hall were difficult because it was not always known what was below ground before 
construction began. He indicated that the ground at the 2101 W. Quincy Avenue site 
had very little clay and the new Public Works buildings would be fairly lightweight, so 
staff was confident in their cost estimate for that facility, which also included a 30% 
contingency. He noted that the $4.5 million budget for the new City Hall was the tightest 
budget and staff was planning a building that would meet the City’s needs going 
forward. He added that the cost for the proposed parking lot could be shared with John 
Meade Park. He suggested that including all three projects in the COP issuance would 
provide the most flexibility to the City. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked about the square footage for the new City Hall. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

17

 
City Manager Thorsen replied the new City Hall was planned for 12,500 square feet. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that he liked the idea of limiting the COPs as that would 
prevent the budget for the projects from increasing, and avoiding the cost increase that 
was seen for City Hall ten years ago. 
 
City Manager Thorsen added that the City could use more of the existing buildings on 
the 2101 W. Quincy Avenue site if costs needed to be reduced due to unanticipated 
costs. He indicated that staff was very confident in the cost estimates for the new Public 
Works facility and redevelopment of John Meade Park, and was confident in the cost 
estimate for a new City Hall although it was a tight budget. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that he was not questioning staff’s good faith efforts 
but was concerned that the City hadn’t gone through the normal process to establish the 
cost of the projects at a higher certainty. He stated that he wanted to ensure that 
Council knew everything there was to consider before they committed to the COPs. 
 
Councilor Gallagher noted that the John Meade Park redevelopment could be done in 
phases and that the City had flexibility in completing that project. He indicated that 
Council should be thoughtful about how to spend City funds and not take on debt for a 
park that wasn’t currently used. He stated that the City had to improve the Alan Hutto 
Memorial Commons and had to do the floodplain remediation and should do the 
wetlands improvement. He indicated his support in paying cash for the John Meade 
Park redevelopment. 
 
Councilor Hoellen stated that it was okay not to prioritize open space acquisition but that 
Council had to acknowledge that is what they would be doing by choosing to pay cash 
for the John Meade Park redevelopment. 
 
Mayor Christman explained that in relation to the phasing for John Meade Park, it would 
cost the City significantly more in application fees to FEMA to break up the process 
rather than doing John Meade Park, City Hall, and the parking lot together. She noted 
that the majority of the cost to redevelop John Meade Park was related to FEMA, and 
the playground and restroom were relatively minor costs. She asked what portion the 
FEMA parts of the John Meade Park project consisted of. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff had not broken down the costs that way. He 
added that the grading for the Alan Hutto Memorial Commons and the wetland 
improvements were interrelated, and that in order to present one application to FEMA 
the City would need to know the plan for both John Meade Park and City Hall. He 
indicated that if Council chose to use cash instead of COPs to redevelop John Meade 
Park then the City would likely not have sufficient funds to purchase open space until 
2022 because $2 million would have been borrowed by the Parks Fund from the 
General Fund for the John Meade Park project and would need to be paid back. He 
stated that approving the full $12.9 million in COPs would provide the City with flexibility, 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

18

including maintaining cash reserves for possible acquisition of open space. He noted 
that if the project costs were less than $12.9 million then the City could use the excess 
funds to pay the COP payments. 
 
Councilor Hoellen stated that no Council would spend City funds in an unthoughtful 
manner. He noted that $12.9 million was a maximum. He indicated that approving $12.9 
million in COPs did not approve the three projects as they were currently planned, and 
that Council would be thoughtful about each project during the process. He stated that 
he agreed with Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown’s other two points but not the reduction in 
COPs. He indicated that he wanted to preserve the option to purchase open space, and 
approval of the $12.9 million in COPs would allow the City to complete its goals and 
objectives, including preserve the option of open space acquisition if an opportunity 
arose. 
 
Mayor Christman indicated that another reason why flexibility was preferred was that 
upcoming costs for Quincy Farm were unknown, and although grants were available 
they often required matching funds. She stated that it would be a shame to lose a grant 
opportunity because the City did not have the matching funds available. She asked 
about the difference in interest payments between the $9.2 million and $12.9 million 
COP issuances. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that the difference to the Parks funds between the two 
COP issuance amounts was $240,000 in annual COP payments, and there would be no 
difference in the General Fund. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that committing to COP payments from the Parks 
and Recreation Fund would add to the fixed costs and reduce the amount of revenue 
available in that Fund. 
 
Mayor Christman stated that she did not think the City needed a final contract with an 
architect or contractor before issuing the COPs, and should not sign a contract before 
issuing the COPs. She asked if delaying the issuance subject to more concrete cost 
estimates would result in increased costs to the City. 
 
Mr. Bell replied that the council bill under consideration tonight set the maximum 
amount of COPs but did not delineate projects or amounts per project. He indicated that 
as the underwriter he would like to see the leased assets, namely the new Public Works 
facility and new City Hall building, be constructed first. He noted that it would be a 
couple months before the COPs were sold on the marketplace, and that if Council 
approved the $12.9 million with this council bill, that amount could be reduced in the 
next couple months if Council chose to do so. He explained that after the council bill 
was approved on second reading at the January 3rd Council meeting, the likely timeline 
was: the City’s credit rating would be established by the second or third week of 
January, municipal bond insurance would be established by the first week of February, 
sale of the COPs would begin in mid-February, and closing by the end of February or 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

19

first part of March, after the referendum period had passed. He indicated that this 
timeline would require that the final amount of COPs be determined by mid-January.  
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin stated that the referendum period was 30 days. 
 
Mr. Bell emphasized that from his perspective the leased assets of Public Works and 
City Hall were the high priorities and whatever was left of the $12.9 million after they 
were complete would be for the John Meade Park project. 
 
Mayor Christman asked about the Civic Center parking lot. 
 
Mr. Bell replied that he would consider the parking lot and landscaping around it to be 
part of the City Hall lease hold interest. 
 
City Manager Thorsen noted that the cost for the proposed parking lot would be shared 
by the City Hall and the John Meade Park project budgets. 
 
Mayor Christman indicated that if John Meade Park were not included in the COPs the 
City would have to be sure that there was not a cost overrun in the City Hall budget for 
the parking lot. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf indicated that she was in support of approving the proposed 
council bill for $12.9 million in COPs. She noted that it would be easier for Council to 
lower that number if they chose to rather than increase it later. She stated that it was 
very important to have funds available for open space acquisition. She noted that 
several of the City’s best opportunities were coming together at the same time and she 
was impressed by staff’s planning and financing options. She indicated that she knew 
staff would work diligently on procuring grants for John Meade Park and Quincy Farm. 
She stated that this was a big decision and that in many ways the Council was deciding 
the City’s appearance and character for the next 50 years. She indicated her support of 
everyone’s steady and clear thinking. She suggested that the City might begin to look at 
other sources of income in the future as outlined in the Master Plan. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about shorter call periods for COPs as utilized by CDOT to fund 
their new headquarters. 
 
Mr. Bell replied that he had been involved in that transaction as well as several for 
school districts that had used shorter call periods. He explained that COPs with a 
shorter call period were more expensive but could be a good option in certain situations. 
 
Councilor Hoellen noted that it would not be worth the extra cost to the City to shorten 
the call period unless interest rates became significantly higher. 
 
Councilor Gallagher indicated that open space was very important and suggested that 
Council could go to the voters with a specific amount for a specific property if it became 
available. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

20

 
Councilor VanderWerf warned that the seller would need to be willing to wait for the City 
to have the funds through an election cycle, and that the City had lost a piece of open 
space in the past because of that issue. 
 
Councilor Hoellen stated that Council was obligated to implement the plans for the City 
at large, and could not defer to the residents for every decision because priorities would 
constantly shift. 
 
Councilor Gallagher suggested including part of the John Meade Park redevelopment 
cost with the COPs and paying the rest with cash. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that the John Meade Park redevelopment overlapped with the 
new City Hall and she would be more in support of funding all aspects related to City 
Hall with COPs if a portion of John Meade Park were paid for in cash. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked why the cost for the John Meade Park redevelopment 
was entirely in the Parks funds if part of it was administrative. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked how long it would take to get the construction cost numbers 
that Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown was proposing Council should have before issuing COPs. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff planned to have a final design for City Hall by 
late summer or early fall, with partial designs and adjusted cost estimates along the 
way. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that a contract could usually be negotiated at 30% 
design. 
 
City Manager Thorsen added that the long timeline for the design process was partially 
due to the FEMA permit process, which would take six months. He indicated that during 
that time planning and design would continue for City Hall, Public Works and John 
Meade Park. 
 
Councilor Hoellen noted that the City could close on the 2101 W. Quincy Avenue 
property and begin construction of the new Public Works facility in the meantime and if 
the City had not finalized the COPs by then all the City’s cash would be tied up in Public 
Works. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown agreed that Public Works could be completed quickly and 
COPs for Public Works could be issued separately from City Hall and John Meade Park. 
He noted that the proposed council bill would only authorize staff to move forward with 
the process but not allocate the COPs. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

21

City Manager Thorsen warned that separating Public Works from the other projects 
would give the City less ability to issue COPs for John Meade Park, unless the City was 
able to space out the issuances but keep all the COPs linked. 
 
Councilor Hoellen asked if COPs for John Meade Park could be issued with just City 
Hall, if Council chose to separate Public Works. 
 
Mr. Bell replied that the equity in the City Hall ground could be used for the John Meade 
Park project. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown asked what acreage was considered for the City Hall ground 
asset. 
 
City Manager Thorsen replied approximately six acres. 
 
Mayor Christman asked if Council approved $12.9 million in COPs if the City could 
complete the projects in pieces. 
 
Mr. Bell replied that it was not necessary to decide that at this point as the council bill 
under consideration would only delegate authority but not approve projects or 
allocations. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that if Council approved $12.9 million it would leave flexibility to 
reduce the amount in the future if better cost estimates were available. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf added that $12.9 million would be the upper limit that the City 
would issue. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated that less debt was better. He noted that a new Public Works 
facility and City Hall had been a topic of discussion throughout his eight year term on 
Council. He added that Council couldn’t have everything and had to identify needs 
versus wants. 
 
Mayor Christman suggested approving the council bill with $12.9 million. She expressed 
concern that the suggested $9.2 million did not include the parking lot and that would 
require more cash to be spent from the Parks fund. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown replied that cash would have to be spent from the Parks fund 
either way, either to make COP payments or to pay directly for the projects. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf added that COPs should be used for both the parking lot and 
floodplain remediation. 
 
Councilor Gallagher suggested that Council approve a COP amount that included 
Public Works, City Hall, and the portions of John Meade Park that were necessary for 
City Hall, and pay for the remainder of John Meade Park with cash. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

22

 
Councilor Griffin indicated that if the hard numbers were different than the estimated 
costs the Public Works and City Hall projects would be jeopardized. 
 
Councilor Gallagher replied that the City should be sure to issue sufficient COPs to 
cover the hard costs. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown indicated that the parking lot would be funded and built either 
way. 
 
Councilor Gallagher asked about the floodplain remediation. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown replied that it was included in the 2017 budget already and 
that all would be funded. He added that reducing the COP issuance to $9.4 million 
would not eliminate the parking lot or floodplain remediation. 
 
Mayor Christman suggested there was no reason not to approve $12.9 million now and 
reduce it later if desired. She added that would give the new Council the most flexibility. 
 
Councilor Hoellen agreed that the two most important projects were Public Works and 
City Hall. He indicated that if John Meade Park was not included in the COP issuance 
then the chance of the redevelopment being completed was reduced and/or the 
opportunity to acquire open space was reduced. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf stated that Council had made a commitment to redevelop John 
Meade Park and Alan Hutto Memorial Commons. She indicated her support of $12.9 
million with the possibility of reduction in the future. 
 
Councilor Gallagher agreed that the flexibility to the City and the next Council afforded 
by $12.9 million was preferable. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf added that she wanted to see the cost of purchasing 2101 W. 
Quincy Avenue paid back, and the City needed to make sure it had cash to work with 
and carry through with these projects. 
 
Councilor Griffin stated that he was confident in the next Council to be prudent going 
forward with hard numbers for these projects. He indicated his support of $12.9 million 
in order to give the next Council flexibility. 
 
Councilor Gallagher indicated that Council should be thoughtful and consider needs 
versus wants. He stated he was in favor of $12.9 million. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf moved, seconded by Councilor Hoellen to approve Council Bill 11, 
Series 2016; a bill for an ordinance authorizing a site lease and lease purchase agreement 
between the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado, and UMB Bank for the purpose of 
financing public buildings and certain park improvements; approving not to exceed 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

23

$12,900,000 principal amount of Certificates of Participation, Series 2017 in connection 
therewith; authorizing officials of the City to take all action necessary to carry out the 
transactions contemplated hereby; and related matters on first reading. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

VanderWerf   yes 
Hoellen   yes 
Gallagher   yes 
Griffin    yes 
A. Brown   no 

 
Vote on the Council Bill 11-2016:  4 ayes.  1 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
Mayor Christman thanked the Council for the thorough discussion. She also thanked the 
new Council members for being in attendance. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that this was the culmination of nearly ten years of work. He 
stated that he came onto Council to implement the Master Plan and would work to keep 
these projects a high priority moving forward. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked that retail priority be given to residents to purchase the City’s 
bonds. 
 
Mayor Christman agreed. 
 
Council Bill 12, Series 2016; Approving a First Amendment to Agreement Relating to 
Subdivision and Development of Glenmoor of Cherry Hills and Authorizing a Temporary 
and Limited Waiver of Section 18-10-160 of the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Code 
(first reading) 
 
Director Hodgson presented Council Bill 12, Series 2016 on first reading. She explained 
that the applicant, Glenmoor Country Club (GMCC), was currently not allowed to drill 
wells per its agreement with the City. City staff received the request initially on October 
30, 2015 for an amendment to the current subdivision agreement to allow GMCC to drill 
a new water well on their property or easements. A year later, GMCC submitted a 
revised subdivision agreement amendment with an additional request for a limited 
duration of time for continuous well drilling of 24 hours a day for a maximum of seven 
consecutive days. Because this would constitute a temporary waiver of Section 18-10-
60 of the Municipal Code, this request would have to be approved by City Council. Staff 
has found this request to be reasonable because in certain circumstances a well needs 
to be continuously drilled because there is a risk of the well walls collapsing if drilling is 
stopped. Any well drilling operations that are in excess of this seven day exemption 
would require prior approval from the Community Development Director. Approval 
would be based on the following conditions: good cause exists and prior written notice is 
given to the Glenmoor Homeowners Association. 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

24

 
Councilor Hoellen asked about the section of the subdivision agreement amendment 
which stated that additional wells on the property would be subject to approval by the 
Community Development Director. 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin replied that the amendment had been presented to 
staff from the applicant. 
 
Jim Soran, representative for GMCC, explained that they were requesting a new well as 
a backup to their current irrigation system. He added that the provision in the 
amendment allowing for additional wells was in case the new well was not productive or 
failed. 
 
Councilor Hoellen indicated that the wording “which approval will not be unreasonably 
withheld” should be removed. 
 
Mayor Christman stated that she approved of the proposed location of the new well 
since it was not near any residences.  She expressed concern that a future well should 
not be located near residences as the drilling would be disturbing. She suggested that 
additional amendments be required for any future wells. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked if GMCC’s water rights were new and asked about the aquifer. 
 
Mr. Soran replied they had been acquired in 2010.  
 
Steve VanBuren, General Manager for GMCC, replied that the aquifer was about 1800 
feet deep. 
 
Councilor Hoellen questioned the reasoning behind the original restriction on new wells. 
He asked about the 1000 foot structure discussed in the amendment. 
 
Mr. Soran replied that the restriction on new wells may have been for the entire 
subdivision, which would make sense as the City would not want new wells being 
constructed on all the residential lots in the subdivision. He noted that the 1000 feet was 
a maximum size for the well house. 
 
Mayor Christman suggested that wording was not needed in the amendment because 
any structure would have to adhere to O-1 zoning requirements. 
 
Director Hodgson indicated that any structure on the property would have to adhere to 
zoning regulations and the amendment was not authorizing an exception to the Zoning 
Code. 
 
Mayor Christman noted that the wording of the amendment was unclear.  
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

25

Mr. Soran added that the applicant did not believe that the expanded use application 
section of the Zoning Code applied to the proposed well house. 
 
Mayor Christman replied that in the past the City’s policy had been that any new 
structure on an O-1 property had to go through the expanded use application process. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated that he agreed with Councilor Hoellen that the amendment 
should be for one new well only. 
 
Mayor Christman asked if the drilling for the new well would take place over the 
weekend. 
 
Mr. Soran replied that once the drilling began it would have to be continuous until 
completed for safety reasons and therefor may occur over a weekend. 
 
Councilor Hoellen suggested the issue be tabled to a future meeting. 
 
Mayor Christman asked the applicant about their timeframe. 
 
Mr. Soran replied that the applicant was planning the well for the summer. 
 
City Manager Thorsen indicated that staff would return at a future meeting to address 
Council’s concerns regarding the Zoning Code, “reasonably withheld”, the history of the 
restriction on wells, and the one-time approval of a new well versus multiple future 
wells. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report 
 
The Mayor wished everyone Happy Holidays and thanked the outgoing Council 
members for their valuable service. 
 
Members of City Council 
 
Councilor Gallagher thanked the outgoing Council members. 
 
Councilor Griffin thanked staff for their work with the Winter Celebration. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem A. Brown noted that the Winter Celebration had been well attended. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf agreed. 
 
Councilor Hoellen expressed regret that he was unable to attend the Winter 
Celebration. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

December 14, 2016 
City Council 
 

26

Members of City Boards and Commissions 
 
None 
 
City Manager & Staff 
 
City Manager Thorsen thanked the outgoing Council members and congratulated the 
Parks staff on a successful Winter Celebration event. 
 
City Attorney 
 
Assistant City Attorney McAskin indicated that City Attorney Michow had been sorry she 
couldn’t attend tonight’s meeting and wished everyone Happy Holidays. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Christman, Mayor 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Smith, City Clerk 

















































































































































































































































































CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

2450 E. Quincy Avenue                     Village Center 

Cherry Hills Village, CO  80113                     Telephone 303‐789‐2541 

www.cherryhillsvillage.com                                               FAX 303‐761‐9386 

 
 

ITEM: 18d(i) 

G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO 
1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR CHRISTMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

 
FROM: LAURA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
SUBJECT: PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION VACANCY 
 
DATE: JANUARY 3, 2017 
 
 
ISSUE 
The City currently has a vacancy on the Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) as a result of 
the November 2016 election. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The vacancy was included in the December issue of the Village Crier and posted on the City 
website. The application deadline was identified as December 30, 2016. At the time packets were 
completed staff has received two new applications. 
 
Per the Board and Commission Policy adopted by Council at the November 18, 2014 meeting 
staff has contacted seven residents who have applied within the last two years. At the time 
packets were completed staff has received confirmation that four past applicant would like to be 
considered for the vacancy. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
Staff is asking for Council appointment of two Councilors to conduct interviews and make 
recommendations to Council in order to fill the vacancies. 


